DELEGATED DECISIONS BY CABINET MEMBER FOR TRANSPORT MANAGEMENT

MINUTES of the meeting held on Thursday, 12 December 2024 commencing at 10.00 am and finishing at 13.40 pm

Present:

Voting Members: Councillor Andrew Gant – in the Chair

Other Members in Attendance:

Councillor Trish Elphinstone (Agenda Item 8) Councillor Charlie Hicks (Agenda Item 8&10) Councillor Sally Povolotsky (Agenda Item 12)

Officers: Jack Ahier (Democratic Services Officer), Cathy

Champion (Operations Manager – Civil Enforcement), Robert Freshwater (Infrastructure Development Lead), Anthony Kirkwood (Vision Zero Team Leader), Will Madgwick (Technical Lead – Strategic Sites) Vicki Neville (Senior Officer – Civil Enforcement Scheme) (Emma Palmer (Senior Officer – Civil Enforcement Scheme), Lee Turner (Team Leader – Traffic and Road

Safety), Rosie Wood (Senior Engineer).

The Cabinet Member considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting [, together with a schedule of addenda tabled at the meeting/the following additional documents:] and agreed as set out below. Copies of the agenda and reports [agenda, reports and schedule/additional documents] are attached to the signed Minutes.

192/24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(Agenda No. 1)

There were none.

193/24 QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS

(Agenda No. 2)

There was 1 registered from Cllr Mark Cherry, which can be seen in an Addendum on the meeting page on the website.

194/24 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS

(Agenda No. 3)

There were 13 registered speakers for the meeting. A list of speakers can be seen here:

<u>Item 5 – Charlbury Proposed Parking Scheme (2024)</u>

- Mike Hughes
- Richard Fairhurst
- Kevin Slevin.

Item 6: Proposed Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) – Hightown Road Area, Banbury

- William Fowler

Item 7: Proposed Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) - Cooper's Gate, Banbury

- Keith Young
- Colin Gibson

<u>Item 8: Proposed Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) – Littlemore North, Oxford</u>

- Cllr Trish Elphinstone
- Cllr Charlie Hicks
- Oxford City Cllr Anne Stares (read out by Oxford City Cllr David Henwood).

Item 10: Westbury Crescent, Oxford - Highway Improvements Scheme 2024/25

- Cllr Charlie Hicks
- Oxford City Cllr David Henwood

Item 12: Proposed Puffin Crossing – A417 Reading Rd, West Hendred

- Cllr Sally Povolotsky
- Helen Butler
- Lindsey Sanders

195/24 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

(Agenda No. 4)

The minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2024 were approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

196/24 CHARLBURY PROPOSED PARKING SCHEME (2024)

(Agenda No. 5)

The Chair briefly adjourned the meeting to take advice from officers.

The meeting returned from the adjournment and the Chair invited speakers to make their contributions and responded to their points in turn.

Officers confirmed they would look at slight tweaks to the lengths of bays on Market Street to improve visibility.

Following a question from the Chair, officers confirmed that the Town Council went out and asked residents what issues they were facing in terms of parking, which provided the basis for the scheme developed.

The Chair raised consultation responses surrounding the nursery in Charlbury and asked officers to continue discussions with the nursery to address outstanding issues.

The Chair asked officers to keep the scheme under review, particularly in relation to the permit parking bays, to address concerns that arise.

The Chair thanked officers for their work, thanked speakers for their contributions and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

Approve the introduction of parking controls in Charlbury as follows:

- a) The introduction of parking places on Browns Lane for 30 minute maximum stay during the hours of 8am to 6pm, Monday to Saturday.
- b) The introduction of parking places on Church Street for residents permit holders or 3 hours maximum stay for non-permit holders during the hours of 8am to 6pm, Monday to Saturday.
- c) The introduction of parking places on Market Street and Sheep Street for permit holders or 1 hour maximum stay for non-permit holders during the hours of 8am to 6pm, Monday to Saturday.
- d) The introduction of parking places on Grammar School Lane for permit holders or 30 minute maximum stay for non-permit holders during the hours of 8am to 6pm, Monday to Saturday.
- e) The introduction of resident permit holders only at all times bays on Pound Hill Lane, Thames Street, Dyers Hill, Park Street, Sheep Street, Browns Lane and The Playing Close.
- f) To retain and provide permit parking bays on the west side of Park Street, instead of the east side as originally proposed.
- g) The introduction of residents permit holders parking only area at all times on Church Lane.
- h) To remove disabled persons parking place on Church Lane.
- i) The introduction of no waiting at any time restrictions on sections of Pound Hill, Nine Acres Lane, Market Street, Browns Lane, Sheep Street, Park Street, Grammar School Hill/Park Street and Dyers Hill.
- j) To include all properties on Fishers Lane and Market Street in the schedule of eligible properties for the issue of a CH permit.
- k) To approve minor amendments to the length of parking bays provided on Market Street in the vicinity of the access to Charlwood.

197/24 PROPOSED CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE (CPZ) - HIGHTOWN ROAD AREA, BANBURY

(Agenda No. 6)

The Chair invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to their points in turn.

The Chair referenced several general points about Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ's) due to 3 items about CPZ's being on the agenda.

Officers confirmed that restrictions that were proposed were in-line with restrictions across Oxfordshire from 8am – 6pm, but that it would be monitored.

It was confirmed that every CPZ has the same opportunity across Oxfordshire to apply for visitor permits in terms of how many you receive for free and how many could be purchased after.

Officers noted that everyone living on a street was eligible to purchase visitor permits, even if they have off-street parking.

The Chair and officers confirmed that more clarity would be welcome regarding pavement parking from the government.

The Chair thanked officers and speakers for their contributions, and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

Approve the introduction of parking controls in Hightown Road area as follows:

- a) 'Permit holder only' restrictions, 8am to 6pm, Monday to Saturday on the entire lengths of Lamb's Crescent, Lime Avenue, Kilbale Crescent and Western Crescent.
- b) 'No waiting at Any Time' restrictions (double yellow lines) on parts of Swan Close Road, Hightown Road, Lamb's Crescent, Western Crescent, Lime Avenue and Green Lane as advertised.
- c) Include the properties from No.2- 56 (evens) and No.13-37 (odds) Hightown Road in the schedule of eligible properties for the issue of a 'HT' permit.

198/24 PROPOSED CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE (CPZ) - COOPER'S GATE, BANBURY

(Agenda No. 7)

The Chair invited speakers to address the meeting and responded to their points in turn.

Following a question from the Chair addressing concerns raised by speakers, officers made the point that their opinion would not encourage further obstructive parking. With regards to concern over competition over parking places, officers noted that most residents have off-street parking.

The Chair referenced several consultation responses and photographs sent in by residents, which were useful in detailing specific local points.

The Chair thanked officers, thanked speakers for their introduction and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

Approve the introduction of parking controls in Cooper's Gate as follows:

- a) The introduction of permit holder only restrictions, 8am to 6pm, Monday to Saturday on Coopers Gate from its junction with A361 Southam Road for its entire length (excluding areas not part of the public highway) (except where no waiting restrictions apply).
- b) The removal of existing single yellow line restrictions, Mon-Sat, 9am-5pm to allow permit holders to park within these sections of road.
- c) To retain the existing single yellow lines, 8am 6pm on the sections of Coopers Gate, opposite No.128 and No's 75/76.

199/24 PROPOSED CONTROLLED PARKING ZONE (CPZ) - LITTLEMORE NORTH, OXFORD

(Agenda No. 8)

The Chair invited speakers to make their addresses and responded to their points in turn.

The Chair read out a written submission from Littlemore Parish Council.

Officers clarified that the proposed scheme was not 24/7, but that the operating hours were from 8:30am to 6:30pm, 7 days a week.

The Chair referenced proposals which formed part of the 2024/25 budget.

The Chair referred to an issue relating to business permits for Church Cowley St James Primary School, which officers confirmed had been resolved.

The Chair pointed out that transport policies could not be seen in isolation from other policies more widely that affect key sectors in the city.

The Chair asked about the synergies between the recommendations, and officers confirmed that they could be taken forward separately if one recommendation was approved and the other not, should that be the decision that was taken.

The Chair referenced several consultation responses and confirmed they are taken into account when making decisions.

The Chair re-iterated that CPZ's were the policy of the County Council and were confirmed in LTCP5 (Local Transport and Connectivity Plan 5) and formed part of the 2024/25 budget.

The Chair referenced previous decisions regarding CPZ's in neighbouring areas and stressed the need for consistency.

The Chair thanked officers for their work, thanked speakers for their contributions and agreed to defer recommendation a) and approve recommendation b).

RESOLVED to:

Defer:

a) Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) Monday to Sunday 8am – 6.30pm permit holders or 2 hours for non-permit holders in Littlemore North,

Approve:

b) 'No Waiting at Any Time' restrictions (double yellow lines).

200/24 CPZ PARKING PERMIT ELIGIBILTY (VARIOUS LOCATIONS, OXFORD - SEPTEMBER 2024)

(Agenda No. 9)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting.

The Chair referenced the three categories of measures to be decided upon:

- Exclude from eligibility for resident and visitor parking permits.
- Exclude from resident parking permits but allow visitor permits.
- Deferrals.

The Chair noted that some of these decisions come as a result of agreed planning consent.

The Chair thanked officers for their work and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

Approve the following proposals in respect of eligibility for parking permits within various Controlled Parking Zones (CPZs) in Oxford:

a) Exclude from eligibility for resident's parking permits and residents' visitors' parking permits the following properties:

- i. Cowley Centre East No.244 Barns Road,
- ii. East Oxford No.100a Bullingdon Road,
- iii. Headington North No.9 Blackthorn Close
- iv. Headington Quarry No.1a York Avenue,
- v. Lye Valley a) No. 85 The Slade, and b) 5 Glebelands,
- vi. Marston North No.14 Salford Road,
- vii. Northway a) No.2 Sutton Road.
- b) Exclude from eligibility for resident's parking permits only (visitors' permits allowed) the following properties:
 - i. Headington Central Lime Walk Nos.91 & 91A, No.93 (Flats 1 & 2), No.95, and No.97 (Flats 1-3).
 - ii. Headington Quarry Nos. 132a,132b and 132c Old Road,
 - iii. North Summertown No.30 Davenant Road.
 - iv. Summertown No.312A Woodstock Road.
- c) Defer a decision on the eligibility for resident's parking permits and residents' visitors' parking permits for the following property:
 - i. Northway 6 Gouldland Gardens.

201/24 WESTBURY CRESCENT, OXFORD - HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS SCHEME 2024/25

(Agenda No. 10)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting, invited speakers to make their addresses and responded to their points in turn.

The Chair made reference to the point of consultations being for respondents to provide their viewpoints, before the decision-maker analyses responses and comes to a judgement. It was noted that consultation feedback in this specific scheme had led to slight alterations of the proposals.

Officers noted that the planters can be monitored, and changed if required, due to specific concerns that arise.

The Chair and officers engaged in discussion about specific details of the scheme relating to contra-flow cycling in one-way streets.

The Chair referred to several of the consultation responses.

The Chair cited the proposal as a good example of co-production with local residents, officers and local Councillors to ensure that the details are right.

The Chair thanked officers for their work, thanked speakers for their contributions and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

Approve the following highway improvements on Westbury Crescent in Oxford, as advertised:

- a) One-way traffic restriction (exemptions for people cycling) with eastbound traffic using the northern leg, and westbound traffic using the southern leg.
- b) Traffic calming features in the form of physical planters placed on the highway at various points to narrow the road slightly, with the exception of proposed planters outside 36 and 31 Westbury Crescent which are recommended not to be taken forward.
- c) 'No Waiting at Any Time' (double yellow lines) parking restrictions at various locations to support the traffic calming features with the exception of proposed 'No Waiting at Any Time' (double yellow lines) parking restrictions in the vicinity of 36 and 31 Westbury Crescent which (subject to 'b') would not be required to be taken forward.

202/24 ARMSTRONG ROAD, OXFORD - PROPOSED WAITING RESTRICTIONS (Agenda No. 11)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting.

Officers clarified why no objections were made initially in 2020, as the development has not yet been built and no-one was living on Armstrong Road at that point.

The Chair referred to several of the consultation responses, but noted the context of the decision to be made, in terms of the Section 278 agreement made and agreed through the planning process.

Officers noted that blue badges are allocated to the person rather than the vehicle, and also referenced the observation period for double-yellow lines so that parking enforcement officers can distinguish between a legitimate need to be there or not.

The Chair thanked officers and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

Approve the implementation of parking restrictions and traffic calming features as follows:

- a) The introduction of no waiting at any time restrictions (double yellow lines) on sections of Armstrong Road as advertised.
- b) The introduction of raised tables on sections of Armstong Road as advertised.

203/24 PROPOSED PUFFIN CROSSING - A417 READING ROAD, WEST HENDRED

(Agenda No. 12)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting, invited speakers to make their addresses and responded to their points in turn.

The Chair referenced the importance of local knowledge to inform schemes and thanked speakers for their contributions.

The Chair agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED:

Approve the following features on the A417 Reading Road, in West Hendred as advertised:

- a) Puffin Crossing located approx. 30 metres east of the junction with The Greenway, and
- b) Bus Stop Clearways at the bus stops on the north and south sides of the A417 in the vicinity of the Puffin Crossing.

204/24 PROPOSED RAISED TABLE - DENCHWORTH ROAD, GROVE (Agenda No. 13)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting.

The Chair made the point that the decision was relating to a Section 278 agreement through the planning process. Officers confirmed that the scheme was developer funded.

The Chair thanked officers and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

a) Approve the introduction of a Raised Table traffic calming feature at the Denchworth Road/The Maples/Barley Way junction, in Grove as advertised.

205/24 A44 BEGBROKE - PROPOSED 20 & 40MPH SPEED LIMITS

(Agenda No. 14)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting.

The Chair noted the progress of the implementation of the 20mph schemes.

The Chair referenced that the overall schemes required local support, which in this case was not present relating to the 20mph part of the recommendations. Officers explained that a decision was made to include 20mph limits in the consultation as it was initially unclear if the parish council was in favour or not.

Officers and the Chair engaged in discussions around the technical details of the toucan crossing and the 40mph speed limit.

The Chair referenced the response from the Oxford Bus Company related to wider transport policies.

The Chair thanked officers and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

- a) To approve the proposed 40mph speed limit on the A44 at Begbroke as advertised.
- b) To not approve the proposed 20mph speed limits on the village roads at Begbroke.

206/24 WHEATLEY: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS

(Agenda No. 15)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting.

The Chair noted that the Wheatley Parish Council was supportive of the scheme, noting the comments relating to some amendments in their submission. It was noted that discussions continue with Holton Parish Council regarding the 20mph limits.

The Chair and officers confirmed that discussions would continue around enforcement with Thames Valley Police.

The Chair referenced several consultation responses relating to speeds and collisions.

The Chair thanked officers and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

a) Approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits in Wheatley, as advertised.

207/24 ASTHALL LEIGH & FIELD ASSARTS: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS (Agenda No. 16)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting.

The Chair referenced the support from the parish council, and asked officers around signage moving from a national speed limit to a 20mph speed limit. Officers stated that signage would be provided for a 20mph limit.

The Chair thanked officers and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED:

a) Approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits at Asthall, Asthall Leigh and Field Assarts as advertised.

208/24 HARDWICK WITH YELFORD: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS (Agenda No. 17)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting.

The Chair referenced the consultation response from TVP and that the comment did not refer to this particular scheme.

The Chair thanked officers and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

a) Approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits at Hardwick and Yelford as advertised.

209/24 HIGHMOOR: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS

(Agenda No. 18)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting.

The Chair referenced a response from the Highmoor Parish Council, which provided support for the scheme.

The Chair asked officers to continue discussions with one property which does not have good visibility from their access point.

The Chair thanked officers and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED:

a) Approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits in Highmoor, as advertised.

210/24 KINGSTON BAGPUIZE: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS

(Agenda No. 19)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting.

The Chair referenced the requests from the parish council for the specific details of the scheme, as shown on the map in the agenda, and also noted consultation responses about the Faringdon Road.

The Chair thanked officers and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

a) Approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits in Kingston Bagpuize, as advertised.

211/24 LETCOMBE REGIS: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS

(Agenda No. 20)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting.

The Chair noted the support for the scheme from Letcombe Regis Parish Council.

The Chair referred to several detailed consultation responses with local knowledge.

The Chair thanked officers and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED:

a) Approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits in Letcombe Regis, as advertised.

212/24 NUFFIELD: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS

(Agenda No. 21)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting.

The Chair noted the support from the local parish council and acknowledged their disappointment relating to not being able to change the 40mph speed limit on the A1430. It was noted that this was outside the scope of this scheme.

Officers confirmed speed limits would be reviewed on A & B roads as part of a broader Vision Zero review.

The Chair thanked officers and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

a) Approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits in Nuffield, as advertised.

213/24 ROTHERFIELD PEPPARD: PROPOSED 20MPH SPEED LIMITS

(Agenda No. 22)

The Chair introduced the item to the meeting.

The Chair noted the good level of consultation response, which was welcomed, and stated that the scheme was a clear application of policy.

The Chair thanked officers and agreed to the recommendations in the report.

RESOLVED to:

 a) Approve the proposed introduction of 20mph speed limits in Rotherfield Peppard, as advertised. 	
	in the Chair
Date of signing	200

